Grace Lutheran School Parent/Student Handbook 2021-2022

Address: 2252 SE 92nd Ave. Portland, OR 97216 Phone: 503.777.8628 Email: glsoffice@grace-wels.net

"Train up a child in the way he should go; and when he is old, he will not depart from it." Proverbs 22:6

Table of Contents

School Staff	
Mission and Purpose	
Our Beliefs	
Organization	
Our Goals	
Coming to School	
School Admission Policy	5
Educational Costs	
Nondiscrimination Policy	
Home Visits	
Registration	
Attendance and Excuses	
Tardy Policy	
Taruy Policy	
Worship Service Attendance	0
Curriculum and Instruction	
Student Convise	7
Student Services	7
Activities	
Eligibility	
Athletics / Phy. Ed.	
Off Campus Education	
Other Activities	
Lunch	
Other Services	
Transportation	
School Telephone	
Electronic Policy	
School Pictures	
Testing Program	
School and Home	10
Home-School Relationship	10
School Hours	
Publications	
Parent-Teacher Consultations	
Chapel	
Visitation	
School Work and Assignments	
Emergency School Closing	
Emergency / Catastrophes / Disasters	
Student Lockers	
Medications	
Working Eagles	
Dress Code	
Computer Technology and Internet Use	
Obedience and Discipline	
Discipline Objectives	
Code of Conduct	
Rules before School	
Playground Rules	
After School Rules	
Unnecessary Items	
Detention	
Suspension	
Conduct Penalty Examples	

Grace Lutheran School Staff



Mission and Purpose

Grace Lutheran School exists to provide a quality education, to proclaim the good news of forgiveness through Jesus Christ, and to assist families in the Christian training of their children.

Our Beliefs

"The fear of the Lord is the beginning of wisdom." (Psalm 111:10)

God clearly tells us in Deuteronomy 6:6-7, "These commandments that I give you today are to be upon your hearts. Impress them on your children. Talk about them when you sit at home and when you walk along the road, when you lie down and when you get up." Again God says in Ephesians 6:4, "Fathers, do not exasperate your children; instead, bring them up in the training and instruction of the Lord."

We *believe, teach, and confess* that all people are sinful. God, through his grace, love and mercy, sent his only Son Jesus Christ, to suffer, die and rise from the dead to set all people free from their sin. The grace and forgiveness of sins Jesus won for us is freely given through the Means of Grace - the Gospel in Word (the Bible) and Sacraments (Baptism and Holy Communion). The account of our salvation is recorded in the Holy Bible, which contains absolutely no errors.

Organization

The congregation of Grace Lutheran Church began Grace Lutheran School in 1975. It was begun so that the members of Grace Ministries would have a school that would provide a continuation and extension of that Christian knowledge and those attitudes that they teach their children in their own homes...something that no other type of education can provide. It was organized in accord with the commands of God: "Fathers, do not exasperate your children; instead, bring them up in the training and instruction of the Lord." (Ephesians 6:4), and "Feed my lambs." (John 21:15)

Our Goals

With the guidance of the Holy Spirit, all of us at Grace Lutheran School strive to:

- proclaim, teach and apply faithfully the Word of God in all courses of instruction and in all other dealings with students and their families, in keeping with the Holy Scriptures;
- promote continuing spiritual growth and faithful Christian discipleship among all members of our school family, to prepare them for a life of service to the Lord;
- provide a challenging academic curriculum in religion, language, social studies, mathematics, science, and the arts, in order to prepare students for continuing their education;
- enable all students to develop their God-given talents by providing them a range of opportunities in the areas of Christian worship, music, athletics and drama;
- deal lovingly and evangelically with each student as a redeemed child of God, offering encouragement and loving Christian discipline;
- regard seriously the trust that families have placed in the school and to deal with all of our students in a way that reflects our role as caretakers and parental representatives;

Our educational programs, guided by the Word of God, offer some of the finest quality education that

will help your child develop to his or her fullest God-given potential. Your child is considered a blessing from God, sinner yet saint, surrounded by a Christian atmosphere that will lead to the development of strong Christian values and character.

Coming to School

School Admission Policy

The primary purpose of Grace Lutheran School is the Christian training of children. Families interested in sending their children to our school are welcome and should contact the principal for information. Non-WELS parents are encouraged to attend a pastor's Bible information class to acquaint themselves with the doctrines their children will be learning.

Children entering preschool must be three on or before September 1 of that school term. Children entering kindergarten must be five on or before September 1 of that school term. They must also submit a birth certificate and an up to date immunization form.

Transfer students will be required to have transcripts and health records transferred to Grace Lutheran School. In all cases, Grace faculty and administration reserve the right to determine the appropriate grade placement for a child enrolled in our school.

Educational Costs

Annually, in June, the Board of Education, with the approval of Grace Ministries, sets up the tuition and fees for the following school year. Please contact the principal or school office for tuition schedule.

The combination of tuition payments and educational fee payments closely follow the actual expenditures necessary to educate a student at Grace Lutheran School. These typical costs include worker (teachers) compensation, building maintenance, insurance, equipment, furnishings, textbooks, and other educational material / activities.

All tuition must be paid in advance by the year, semester, quarter, or month, according to which plan is mutually agreed upon.

Financial assistance may be available for families needing help. Families that are not currently members of Grace Lutheran Church should seek assistance from their church. Please speak to the principal or the financial director.

Additional costs:

- Off Campus Education (Field Trips)
- Technology fees
- Lost or damaged books
- School supplies
- Hot lunch (optional)
- School Pictures (optional)
- Sports fees

Nondiscrimination Policy

Grace Lutheran School admits students of any race, color, national or ethnic origin to all the rights, privileges, programs and activities generally accorded or made available to students at the school. It does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national or ethnic origin in administration of its

educational policies, or athletic and other school-administered programs.

Registration

Parents register their children for school beginning in March of the previous year. The date and times are published in advance. We have an electronic registration process that is filled in online. Contact the office for online registration information.

Attendance and Excuses

Christian stewardship of time and talents is an important part of Christian education. We teach the faithful use of each student's time and talents. Missing school deprives your child of these opportunities. Even if work is later made up, your child has lost the benefit of first-hand classroom discussion and activity. It is to your child's advantage to regularly attend all classes each day and to apply learning diligently. Oregon law requires all school-age children to be in class every day school is in session. The only excuse is illness or bereavement. Other excuses will be unexcused absences.

When a child is absent, parents are to call 503-777-8628 or email the teacher before 8:00 AM and leave a message with the child's teacher or the secretary. A parent's written excuse must accompany each pupil returning to school after being absent, regardless of the length of the absence. Any child absent from school for a period of five consecutive school days or more due to illness, must have a written permission slip to return from a doctor or clinic. This is for the protection of your child and the other children in school.

Parents are urged to make dental and doctor appointments for their children during non-school hours. If school time must be used for such appointments, parents should notify the teacher in advance and accept the responsibility to see that any missed work is made up and turned in. Family vacations during school days are strongly discouraged as it can greatly affect the students ability to progress. If vacations are scheduled during school days, students will need to make up all homework when they return in a timely manner. Teachers are not required or responsible to get homework ready before leaving for an extended period of time. A vacation or extended absence form must be completed and returned to the office at least 1 week prior to the absence.

All unexcused absences are considered truant. Truant students will be reported to the proper authorities. Any make-up work due to an absence is the responsibility of the student and parents. Work must be turned in within a reasonable amount of time for credit.

A student is not to exceed a total of five accumulated absences within any of the four quarters of a school year. In the case of a child who has exceeded the maximum allowable absences for the quarter, the matter will be brought before the Board of Education to determine the status of enrollment of the child and the grade placement of that child for the following school year.

A student is not permitted to leave the school grounds for any reason without a written note from a parent or guardian and permission from the classroom teacher. Parents are encouraged to provide a note no later than two hours before the child is to be excused. If a student is to leave school before dismissal, a parent or guardian must check in at the office. Students will wait safely inside the school office where parents can check in and meet their child.

Any absence from school (excused or unexcused) on the day of an extracurricular activity disqualifies the student from participating in the activity for that day.

Suspensions are recorded as unexcused absences and the student will receive failing grades for each assignment missed.

Tardy Policy

Our school day starts at 8:00 am and ends at 3:00 pm. If your child is tardy, it not only affects your child, but also the other children in the classroom. If your child is tardy, a written note, phone call, email, or personal contact must be made with the school.

Worship Service Attendance

Our God tells us to "Remember the Sabbath day by keeping it holy." Martin Luther said, "We should fear and love God that we do not despise preaching and His Word, but regard it as holy, and gladly hear and learn it." The writer to the Hebrews says, "Let us consider how we may spur one another on toward love and good deeds. Let us not give up meeting together, as some are in the habit of doing, but let us encourage one another—and all the more as you see the Day approaching" (Hebrews 10:24-25). Again, St. Paul reminds us to, "Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly as you teach and admonish one another with all wisdom, and as you sing psalms, hymns, and spiritual songs with gratitude in our hearts to God."

(Colossians 3:16) As Christians, God's Word is quite important to us. Our need for regular worship service attendance is further enhanced when we view the calling we have received to be Christian parents. The examples we set in our personal lives are a testimony to our children. We have a responsibility to provide God's Word which will nurture and strengthen the faith of each child.

Out of Christian love and concern for spiritual growth, our teachers may keep a written record of the worship service attendance of each child and will include the record on the report card. We will discuss worship service attendance with the student and parents in an effort to assist the family.

Curriculum and Instruction

Our school curriculum adheres to standards established by the State of Oregon Department of Education and follows any directives given by the Board for Parish Education of the Wisconsin Evangelical Lutheran Synod. While all of our texts used in the formal teaching of religion are based on God's infallible Word, the textbooks used for the secular subjects are the same as those found in many of our nation's schools. One important difference does exist, however, in that all subjects are taught by instructors who have been trained to bring all subjects under the authority of God's Word. In order to keep our course of instruction as current as possible and to keep our teaching consistently Christ-centered; the faculty members attend conferences, summer school, workshops, and in-service training programs. With the best interests of the students in mind, the curriculum is always subject to evaluation by the faculty, with a goal toward providing the most efficient, effective instruction possible.

Extracurricular Activities

Eligibility

To be eligible to participate in extracurricular activities a student must maintain a C- or better grade average. Any failing grade (F) will make a student ineligible. Grade averages will be reviewed at mid quarter and the end of the quarter. A student will be ineligible for two weeks. After two weeks the grade average will be reviewed. A student will remain ineligible until they again attain a C- or better grade average.

Athletics/Physical Education

Sports and physical education programs are used to develop healthy, vigorous and skilled bodies; and through proper development of these bodies, sound, alert, and trained minds. At the same time we aim

to provide practice in Christian life and conduct.

Since all students participate in the physical education program, many sessions of which are held in the gym, they must have soft-soled shoes. These may be left at school or worn on those days when they know they will be going into the gym.

If a child should not take part in the physical education program, a note from the parent or physician should be given to the teacher prior to the class.

Our school participates with other area WELS and ELS schools in Washington and Oregon. Students in the upper grades have the opportunity to participate in soccer, wrestling, basketball, volleyball, and track.

Parents whose children are involved in sports are responsible for transporting or finding transportation to and from off campus activities.

To maintain a successful athletic program, it is also important that students who commit themselves to participating are diligent in coming to both practices and actual games. Students who do not legitimately excuse themselves, face being dropped from the team. Another important aspect is that parents and students, as well as coaches and teachers, display good Christian sportsmanship at all times.

Other activities

We join other Pacific Northwest WELS and ELS schools for other activities. These include a 2 day environmental camp, soccer, volleyball, wrestling, basketball, track, softball, forensics, choral festival, art fair, spelling bee and math meets.

Off Campus Education (OCE)

Field trips provide an opportunity for students to further their educational experience, outside the school classroom and away from the Grace Lutheran School campus. With education as the primary purpose, OCE's are selected by the teacher(s) to expand on a student's regular classroom material or gain better insight to a specific area of study. Classroom discussion (before/after) of the OCE subject is encouraged to further enhance the experience.

Grace Lutheran School is accountable for all phases of an OCE event. Prior to the date scheduled, all OCE information (date, time, location, grade(s), purpose, subject, driver/chaperones) will be provided to the parents.

Opportunity for help from volunteer assistants requires meeting all necessary criteria noted on the "Willing to Serve" form available from the school office. Student permission forms, indicating all necessary information, allow teachers to obtain required parental signature(s) for student attendance or participation. Parents may decline student participation by excuse.

All permitted students will attend the OCE trip. The teacher, parent, or both may deny a

student's participation, on an individual basis, due to a student's probation status (academic or behavioral), or sickness/medical needs. OCE transportation for the teachers & permitted

students is provided using responsible, insured volunteer driver/chaperones, transporting only parent-permitted, seat belt secured Grace Lutheran School students as approved by the Board. A volunteer driver/chaperone vehicle used on any OCE must meet and abide by all legal requirements.

Oregon state law requires the following regarding seatbelts.

- · Children use a booster seat until they are 4 feet 9 inches tall, unless they are 8 years old.
- \cdot Oregon strongly recommends that children under age 12 ride in the back seat.

- · All Oregon passengers and drivers are required to wear a seat belt
- · Infants must ride rear-facing until they reach both one year of age and twenty pounds
- Parents are responsible for providing the car seats on an OCE trip. If a child is not in a car seat they may not attend.

Driver/chaperone assistant duties will include:

- 1. Signature on file on the *Willing to Serve* form.
- 2. Background check
- 3. Represent GLS assisting in the learning process, following the lead teacher's specific duties outlined for each event. (assisting, monitoring student behavior, etc.)
- 4. Abide by local/state automobile laws (speed limits, seat belts, etc.)
- 5. Be present during the entire trip, serving as an assistant to the teacher/leader.

Unless parental permission and Board of Education approved extensions are granted, OCE trip hours will occur within regular school operating hours. An OCE trip will start and end at Grace Lutheran School. No departure from the OCE planned location(s) to alternative sites will be allowed (homes, bus stops, restaurants, etc.) - Teachers will not transport a student to his/her home after the OCE trip is completed.

Other Services

Extended Care

For the convenience of our school families, we offer extended care services. Extended care is available after school until 6:00 pm when school is in session. Extended care requires a separate one time registration for families that would like to use the service. See extended care registration information packet for details and pricing.

Lunch

Our school does not provide a daily hot lunch or milk program. Students bring their lunch and drinks from home. Under no circumstances, are students permitted to go to local restaurants for lunch on school days unless they are accompanied by their parents.

Transportation

Grace Lutheran School does not provide any transportation of students to or from school. Parents / guardians are responsible for the transport of their own children; however, drivers are encouraged to work together to meet student travel needs. For each child's safety, all carpool arrangements or changes should be explained to the principal or teachers.

Drop off, pick up, and parking areas are designated on the school grounds. Drivers must abide by regulations posted in these zones. Caution is emphasized, and travel through the school driveways or lots will be monitored. To assist in a smooth and safe process, abide by directions provided at all times.

Use of bicycles by students for school transportation is limited to travel to and from the school. Students who ride bicycles to school are required to leave their bikes in the designated school area upon arrival. Skateboards or skates of any design used to transport students to or from school will not be allowed to operate on the school grounds or in the school building.

School Telephone

Parents needing to contact their children are asked to call the school office. Students are not to use the school phone to make out-going calls unless they first receive permission from a teacher or secretary.

Electronic Devices Policy

This policy includes cell phones, I-Pods and other electronic devices. We ask you not have your children

bring them to school. If your child needs to have such a device, have them check it in with the secretary. An infraction of this policy means we will confiscate and give it back personally to the parent. A third infraction is a one day suspension.

Testing Program

Grace Lutheran School participates in a national testing service called Measures of Academic Progress (MAP). MAP are given during the Fall, Winter, and Spring. This test includes students in grades K-8. Parents will be given the results of the tests.

School and Home

Home and School Relationship

The Lord, through his Word, has bound the home and school together as one unit with one and the same aim when he said, "These commandments that I give you today are to be upon your hearts. Impress them on your children. Talk about them when you sit down and when you get up." Parents dare not give up this God-given responsibility when they send their children to school. The teacher's' part is to give additional training so that the work of making our children wise unto salvation might continue uninterrupted and unhindered. Parents and teachers must join hands so that nothing may rob our children of the crown of glory laid up for them in heaven. In order to bring about cooperation in the great responsibility or task the Lord has given us, we must be sure of our aims and objectives. It is self-evident that the source of our aims, objectives, and methods on child training is found in God's Word so that the students may become proficient to carry out their task in a God-pleasing manner.

School Hours

School doors open at 7:45 am. Students are encouraged to arrive no earlier. The school day begins at 8:00 am and the day ends at 3:00 pm. Students not picked up by 3:15 will be sent to our extended care program.

Publications

The Eagle Message is a weekly newsletter sent home with the students or emailed to the parents, usually on Tuesdays. Anyone wishing to include school information in this publication should get it to the secretary before Monday noon.

Teachers often distribute their own newsletters telling about classroom events and projects.

Parent-Teacher Conferences

The dates for the consultations are noted on the calendar. On those days, parents will come to school and pick up report cards and discuss their child's progress/concerns. Schedules will be arranged and sent home in advance. Please come at your scheduled time and be as prompt as possible. If the scheduled time does not work out, please call school and arrange for another time.

Chapel

Chapel is held on Wednesday of each week in the gym. All parents are welcome to come to these chapel services and worship with us. An offering will be gathered during the service, which will be used to support various mission endeavors of our congregation or the Wisconsin Evangelical Lutheran Synod. We ask parents to encourage their children in their support.

Visitation

Parents are invited to visit our classrooms any time during the year. A phone call letting the staff know

that you will visiting would be appreciated, but not required.

School Work and Assignments

Our faculty is in agreement with educators who feel that homework can be beneficial to both students and parents. It is beneficial to the students if it reinforces and extends the work of the classroom. It may also serve as an aid to the students in developing self-discipline. It has benefits for the parents in helping them to better understand the activities of their children during their hours away from home. A great amount of homework ordinarily should not be necessary unless the child has been absent, willfully neglects his work while at school, or is not working up to his grade level for other reasons. The students are given ample time to complete most of their work at school. Please be sure to contact the teacher if it should appear that your child is being burdened with homework.

Emergency School Closing

All Grace Lutheran School and Preschool closures will be announced over the local TV and radio stations and their affiliated websites. You can also access our closure alerts without waiting for our school to be announced via **FlashAlert.Net**

- · go to www.FlashAlert.Net
- · Select your region on the map or in the list: Portland
- · Choose from the Organization Categories: Private & Charter Schools—Portland Area
- · Select from the Private & Charter Schools—Portland Area: Grace Lutheran School & Precious Lambs Preschool

· Choose Grace Lutheran Sch. & Precious Lambs Preschool to see any cancellation information. The need to make up or reschedule class hours for such days will be determined by the Board of Education.

Emergencies I Catastrophes I Disasters

Students will be trained and drilled in proper procedures for school evacuation in case of fire. Training and drills will be held also for earthquake preparedness. Discussion and drill will be held for the possible need of a school "lockdown" in the event of serious threat or violence brought against GLS students or faculty / staff.

A special DESK (Disaster Emergency Survival Kit) is required for each enrolled student at GLS. Information about the contents and use of this kit is available in the letter and form provided annually by the school's main office.

Student Lockers

Hallway lockers are school property. Lockers can never be completely safe, so valuables or money should not be stored in them. Students assigned to a locker are responsible for its content and condition. No unauthorized placement of emblems, insignias, stickers, etc. is allowed in or on any locker.

A student assigned a locker will:

- 1) Use only the locker assigned to him/her
- 2) Use no lock to secure his/her locker door.
- 3) Store only acceptable (school approved or teacher requested) items in the locker.
- 4) Keep the locker clean and in good shape.
- 5) Report damage or poor condition of any locker to the school office immediately.
- 6) Lockers may be inspected at unannounced times periodically by the school staff to check for neatness, missing school materials, or when school officials suspect the storage of illegal materials or items that violate school rules or policy. If necessary, detection dogs may be used for locker inspections.

Medications

At no time is any student to dispense his or her own medication. The secretary or teacher may administer medications at school. Oregon Statutes prohibits our staff from dispensing prescription medications without a doctor's written permission and dispensing nonprescription medications without a parent's permission. Any medication sent to school must remain in its original container.

Working Eagles

Our Working Eagles is an organization established to promote parent involvement within the school. We hope all parents will make a sincere effort to attend the meetings of the Working Eagles and will support the projects it undertakes on behalf of Grace Lutheran School.

Dress Code

Neatness is expected for dress in the classroom. Clothing should be in good condition and appropriate for a classroom setting. Modesty is also expected. Specific classroom dress code is as follows: **Clothing condition**: All clothing should be clean and should not have holes, frays, or tears.

Dresses: Dress and skirt length must hang near the knee or lower. Dresses with spaghetti straps or tank top must be covered with a sweater. Neckline should be no lower than an imaginary line that crosses the chest from upper armpit to upper armpit.

Leggings/Jeggings: Leggings/jeggings must be covered by a shirt, dress, or shorts that hangs near the knee or lower.

Outerwear: Hats (including school issued baseball caps), hoods, sunglasses, jackets, and blankets are not allowed during the school day and should be stored in lockers.

Pants and shorts: All pants and shorts are to be worn at the natural waist. Pants must not sag and underwear must never show. Shorts must hang near the knee. Sweats, wind pants, yoga pants, and athletic shorts are not permitted.

Piercing, Tattooing, Hair Color: No piercing allowed except earrings. No visible tattoos are allowed. Students may dye their hair using only natural hair colors.

Shirts: Shirts must cover the lower back and midriff when sitting or standing. Clothing may not refer to alcohol, alcohol-related establishments, tobacco, drugs, anti-religious messages, skulls and crossbones, goth-like appearance, music groups, sexual innuendo, or violent images. Tank tops, halter tops, strapless tops, spaghetti strap tops, see-through tops, sheer tops, and underwear worn as outerwear are not permitted. Necklines should be no lower than an imaginary line that crosses the chest from upper armpit to upper armpit.

Shoes: Students must wear shoes.

Undergarments: Undergarments must not be visible.

Computer Technology and Internet Use

Computer and internet is available to enrolled students and their teachers at GLS. Students using computers at the school are to:

- 1. Use computer technology in a way consistent with the values promoted by GLS.
- 2. Avoid using the network in such a way that would disrupt network use by others.
- 3. Respect privacy on the network, e.g. do not attempt to change passwords, open, or read personal files not intended for public viewing. Also do not reveal addresses, phone numbers or other private information of students or faculty.
- 4. Be polite. Abusive messages to others will result in disciplinary measures.

Since technological access offers the availability of material not considered appropriate or beneficial toward Christian education, an industrious user might access or discover controversial information. Therefore, Grace Lutheran School has taken precautions to restrict access to most controversial

material, with an understanding that it is impossible to control access to everything.

Each student is then deemed accountable for the search criteria he/she uses with the Internet and for the material accessed. A discerning Christian choice about the type of material accessed is expected and encouraged. Any unauthorized use will result in disciplinary actions, which may include suspension and loss of privileges.

The faculty will intervene and end all school site computer use by a student: when infractions, misuse, or inappropriate access is evidenced. Parental contact and a meeting will follow to resolve concerns in such a case. However, any *system vandalism*, defined as a malicious attempt to harm or destroy hardware *or* software, will result in immediate disciplinary action.

Obedience and Discipline

Every effort is made to maintain Christian discipline at all times. Teachers make every effort to treat all children fairly in accordance with God's Word. On the other hand, it must be understood by students and parents alike, that the students owe implicit obedience to their teachers and others in authority under the Fourth Commandment. In the absence of respect or obedience, reasonable measures will be taken to correct the situation. Parents who feel that there has been a misunderstanding are requested to come to the teacher first (rf. Matthew 18:15ff.). In case a settlement is not brought about, parents may appeal to the principal, pastor, and the Board of Education. Constructive suggestions will always be welcomed.

Discipline Objectives

- 1. To provide an environment where students in God-pleasing behavior are taught to live their faith.
- 2. To provide an environment where teaching can take place.
- 3. To provide an environment where the student has the opportunity to learn.
- 4. To provide an environment where no student feels threatened physically or emotionally.
- 5. To provide an environment where students feel they are loved and important.
- 6. To provide an environment where positive behavior is encouraged, praised, and rewarded. At other times it becomes our duty to point out, admonish, correct, and even punish errors with Christian love and concern for the individual. "He who spares the rod hates his son, but he who loves him is careful to discipline him!" (Proverbs 13:24)

Code of Conduct

The following code of conduct shall apply to the students of Grace Lutheran School:

Rules before school

- 1. After students arrive at school and have used the restroom, they are to go to their classrooms to recite memory work or to study. They are to remain in their classrooms until school starts.
- 2. If a student wants to leave the classroom, it will be the teacher's decision as to whether permission will be granted.
- 3. The classrooms are to have a quiet atmosphere, conducive to study.

Playground rules

- 1. All recess play is to be done in the designated playground areas.
- 2. All students are to line up quietly in an orderly way before entering the school.
- 3. Bikes, rollerblades, and skateboards are to be parked in the bike racks or in the locker upon arrival at school and are to be left there until dismissal.

4. Bikes, rollerblades, and skateboards are not to be ridden on the playground or sidewalks at anytime.

After school rules

- 1. No playground equipment is to be taken outside after school.
- For reasons of liability, students are to be off the premises at the close of the school day. Students whose parents have made arrangements with the teacher, and have permission, will stay at their desks.
- 3. Students may return to play on the playground if they have parental permission. (There is no supervision of the playground after school.)

Unnecessary Items

Students are not to bring any knives or other dangerous weapons to school. Other items, such as personal music players and radios are not permitted. Any item that becomes a nuisance and is, in the opinion of the teacher, unnecessary or detrimental to the education process, will be confiscated.

Detention

A detention is a designated stay after school during which time the student will complete a special assignment. One to three detentions concerning the same offense may be given during a semester before more serious discipline is administered.

Suspension

A suspension means being sent home from school for a day or a number of days in keeping with the nature and the seriousness of the offense. A suspension may be issued at any time (including the first offense) if the offense so warrants. A suspension will automatically be given after three detentions are served for the same offense in the same semester. The student's teacher will provide assignments for the suspension period. The student will be expected to complete the assigned school work. At the end of each semester the slate of offenses will be wiped clean.

NOTE: Parents will be notified and informed of the situation and the seriousness of the offense at the time of or before detention or suspension is given. Otherwise, correction will be handled at school in the spirit of Matthew 18:15, as our Lord instructs us.

Conduct Penalty Examples

The following lists provide examples of offenses and their consequences. The lists are not necessarily all-inclusive and, therefore, teachers and the principal are not limited in application because an item was not on the list.

Level 1 (Teacher Admonition)

Abuse of library privilegeTeaPublic display of affectionTarFailure to do assignmentsCurNoisy disruption of class or chapelForGum chewing without special permission

Teasing Tardiness Cursing or Foul language Food or drink violation

Level 2 (Written Report)

Cheating Repeated occurrences of level 1 offenses Defacing of school or other personal property Repeated absence or tardiness Leaving the classroom or school building without permission Use of tobacco on school property or at school events Deliberate disobedience, insubordination or disrespect Distribution or abuse of "over-the-counter" medication or drugs Harassment, fighting, stealing (depending upon severity)

Level 3 (Written report / suspension)

Indecent exposure or use of pornography Making a bomb threat Threat of or purposeful injury to others Repeated level 2 offenses Setting off a false fire alarm Tampering with a fire extinguisher Setting off firecrackers or incendiary devices at school Being on school campus under the influence of a controlled substance or intoxicant Use of alcohol, illegal drugs, non-prescribed medication or other controlled substances on school property or in connection with school events Purposeful destruction of school property, teacher property or the personal property of others Harassment, fighting, stealing (depending upon severity)

Level 4 (Written report / expulsion)

Striking a teacher Repeated level 3 offenses Bringing a firearm to school Sale or distribution of controlled substances or prescription drugs Or other criminal acts Etc..

Probation

A probation period is time during the school year dedicated to special positive attention for students who need help achieving the academic or behavioral standards of Grace Lutheran School. The probation process is a team effort, led by a faculty member and supported by the student and parents. The three forms of probation at Grace Lutheran School are:

New student probation is a period of time (first full grading period) in which the student is monitored and evaluated by the faculty to help them understand and achieve the academic and behavioral standards required at Grace Lutheran School. Meetings with issued progress reports will be held between faculty and parents and students as needed. At the end of this probation process the Board of Education will make a decision as to the student's status and continued enrollment. This will be based on the classroom teacher's recommendations.

Academic probation will be used to assist and correct student needs in one or more academic subjects or areas. (i.e. persistently late or missing work; grades of 'D' or below on individual assignments; and an overall low report card grade average.)

An academic probation period will last 6 weeks (30 school days) from written notification date. After

that time, the student's probation will end if academic work is at an acceptable level. If after two consecutive academic probation periods the student's work is not improved, the matter will be referred to the Board of Education for action that may include referral to other educational institutions or removal from enrollment.

Behavioral probation will be used to bring a student to repentance and teach them God pleasing behavior after minor or major misconduct.

Behavioral probation will last 6 weeks (30 school days) from written notification date. After that time, the student's probation will end if conduct has improved to an acceptable level. If the student's behavior has not improved after the six weeks' probation, the matter will be referred to the Board of Education for input and action that may include removal from enrollment.

Updated July 2018